

CADTH Health Technology Assessment

Addendum to Remote Monitoring Programs for Cardiac Conditions — Project Protocol

PROSPERO REGISTRATION NUMBER: Submitted, registration number not yet received

Service Line:Health Technology AssessmentIssue:Vol. 10, no. 2aPublication Date:January 2021Report Length:21 Pages



Cite As: Addendum to Remote Monitoring Programs for Cardiac Conditions – Project Protocol. Ottawa: CADTH; 2021 Jan. (CADTH health technology assessment — project protocol).

ISSN: 1927-0127 (online)

Disclaimer: The information in this document is intended to help Canadian health care decision-makers, health care professionals, health systems leaders, and policy-makers make well-informed decisions and thereby improve the quality of health care services. While patients and others may access this document, the document is made available for informational purposes only and no representations or warranties are made with respect to its fitness for any particular purpose. The information in this document should not be used as a substitute for professional medical advice or as a substitute for the application of clinical judgment in respect of the care of a particular patient or other professional judgment in any decision-making process. The Canadian Agency for Drugs and Technologies in Health (CADTH) does not endorse any information, drugs, therapies, treatments, products, processes, or services.

While care has been taken to ensure that the information prepared by CADTH in this document is accurate, complete, and up-to-date as at the applicable date the material was first published by CADTH, CADTH does not make any guarantees to that effect. CADTH does not guarantee and is not responsible for the quality, currency, propriety, accuracy, or reasonableness of any statements, information, or conclusions contained in any third-party materials used in preparing this document. The views and opinions of third parties published in this document do not necessarily state or reflect those of CADTH.

CADTH is not responsible for any errors, omissions, injury, loss, or damage arising from or relating to the use (or misuse) of any information, statements, or conclusions contained in or implied by the contents of this document or any of the source materials.

This document may contain links to third-party websites. CADTH does not have control over the content of such sites. Use of third-party sites is governed by the third-party website owners' own terms and conditions set out for such sites. CADTH does not make any guarantee with respect to any information contained on such third-party sites and CADTH is not responsible for any injury, loss, or damage suffered as a result of using such third-party sites. CADTH has no responsibility for the collection, use, and disclosure of personal information by third-party sites.

Subject to the aforementioned limitations, the views expressed herein are those of CADTH and do not necessarily represent the views of Canada's federal, provincial, or territorial governments or any third party supplier of information.

This document is prepared and intended for use in the context of the Canadian health care system. The use of this document outside of Canada is done so at the user's own risk.

This disclaimer and any questions or matters of any nature arising from or relating to the content or use (or misuse) of this document will be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable therein, and all proceedings shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Province of Ontario, Canada.

The copyright and other intellectual property rights in this document are owned by CADTH and its licensors. These rights are protected by the Canadian *Copyright Act* and other national and international laws and agreements. Users are permitted to make copies of this document for non-commercial purposes only, provided it is not modified when reproduced and appropriate credit is given to CADTH and its licensors.

About CADTH: CADTH is an independent, not-for-profit organization responsible for providing Canada's health care decision-makers with objective evidence to help make informed decisions about the optimal use of drugs, medical devices, diagnostics, and procedures in our health care system.

Funding: CADTH receives funding from Canada's federal, provincial, and territorial governments, with the exception of Quebec.



Table of Contents

Abbreviations	4
Realist Review	5
Background	5
Study Design	5
Research Question	7
Research Methods	7
Literature Search Methods	
Selection and Eligibility Criteria	9
Screening and Selecting Studies for Inclusion	10
Data Extraction	11
Critical Appraisal	12
Data Analysis and Synthesis	12
Rigour and Methodological Uniformity	14
Panel of Experts	14
Final Reporting	14
Protocol Amendments	14
References	15
Appendix 1: Literature Search Strategy	17

Abbreviations

AF	atrial fibrillation
ECG	electrocardiogram
CASP	Critical Appraisal Skills Program
НТА	health technology assessment
PRISMA	Preferred Reporting Items for Systematic Reviews and Meta-Analyses
RAMESES	Realist And Meta-narrative Evidence Syntheses: Evolving Standards
RM	remote monitoring

This protocol for a realist review has been developed as an addendum to the main health technology assessment (HTA) protocol.¹ The protocol has been drafted ensuring attention to elements described in the Realist And Meta-narrative Evidence Syntheses: Evolving Standards (RAMESES II) publication standards, as appropriate.² The protocol is registered with PROSPERO (Submitted, registration number not yet received).

Realist Review

Background

Remote monitoring (RM) programs (also known as remote patient monitoring or remote patient management) offer a compelling alternative and supplement to traditional face-to-face health care for people in Canada with chronic cardiac conditions. The current base of trials evaluating RM programs continues to grow but the type of evidence that these trials generate to inform design decisions at the local level is often too general to be especially useful. This not only hampers local service design but also potentially harms patients and increases system-wide costs by failing to realize the potential of different RM techniques for different contexts.^{3,4}

This situation should not, however, lead to the rejection of RM for the large population of people in Canada with chronic cardiac conditions. Trials over the last 20 years continue to indicate that RM programs for cardiac conditions generally work.^{3,5,6} For example, programs for patients with a variety of chronic cardiac conditions have been shown to be effective by randomized trials and meta-analyses at reducing adverse events (notably hospitalization) and improving quality of life (for example: Clark et al., 2007; Neubeck et al., 2009; Jin et al., 2019)⁷⁻⁹ and have, for over a decade, been found in systematic reviews to have comparable effects to site-based programs (e.g., Anderson et al., 2017; Clark et al., 2007).^{9,10} That said, beyond these positive effects, the actual components of the RM programs remain poorly described in the vast majority of published trials^{3,11} and meta-analyses.¹² Reviewing the body of RM programs for heart failure, this tendency has been termed to contribute to a policy-maker's "nightmare" due to the evidence being vast, fragmented, heterogeneous, of variable quality, and with no clear answers to the question of what technologies, supported by what service infrastructure, to provide for whom.

Details of which types of programs work best in different settings and why are not mere statistical irrelevancies but actually convey vital knowledge for health services design for patients with chronic cardiac conditions.¹³ For example: a systematic review of programs for cardiac rehabilitation identified that on-site programs of up to 1,000 hours of patient contact had similar benefits for morbidity as compared to RM programs with only 10 hours of patient contact.¹⁴ Further, the negative effect of vague intervention descriptions is compounded by the comparably high diversity of RM programs in terms of target populations and components — and the inadequacy of systematic reviews to acknowledge and explore these variations.^{3,6,12,15,16} Those charged with designing or adapting RM programs for specific settings lack an evidence base that is sufficiently specific to inform their decisions.³ More research is still needed to unpack which components of RM programs matter most in different contexts for different populations.

Study Design

To examine what works for whom, when, and why concerning RM programs for treatment and support of chronic cardiac conditions, a realist review will be conducted.¹⁷ Realist reviews are appropriate for assessing how and why various aspects of complex

interventions work, for whom, in what contexts, and to what extent.¹⁷ Knowledge from a realist review provides useful and nuanced guidance for decision-makers in different contexts to inform local service design decisions.¹⁷ This can, for example, better ensure that interventions to promote health and self-management of chronic disease have more consistent benefits across different patients and settings.¹³ Accordingly, findings from realist reviews supplement and complement evidence from other methods (notably randomized trials and meta-analyses) – which provide broad but less specific and useful evidence for decision-makers.^{3.4} While such methods convey that a health services intervention may generally work,⁵ the generic-nature of this evidence fails to convey the influence on intervention outcomes of where the program is provided (context), how it influences outcomes (mechanisms), and what about the intervention promotes effectiveness (components).¹⁸

As an approach, realist reviews are grounded in the realist evaluation method,¹⁹ which has its roots in critical realist philosophy²⁰ and complexity-driven methods and theory.²¹ These approaches share a rejection of research and theory that assume or imply that interventions (such as policies, programs, or strategies) involving behaviours influence outcomes in orderly, linear, law-like ways (e.g., intervention A leads to benefit B in population C).²² Instead, causality between the intervention and its effects is seen to be contingent — resulting from the effects of multiple factors interacting, for example, related to patients, programs, and places, to generate changes in outcomes.²³ Under this contingent approach to causality, even small changes in one element of intervention design (such as a component or subcomponent; or a characteristic of context) could generate large changes in a primary outcome.²⁴

Realist approaches to evaluation and review have profound implications for how health service interventions are conceptualized and researched.²⁵ Accordingly, realist reviews focus less on making a judgment of the truth of a linear causal relation between two single variables (i.e., does x cause y?), but more on the complex ways in which x can cause y under conditions a, b, and so on.¹⁷ As such, realist review methods can be used to tease out the mechanisms and contextual factors that enable interventions to lead to desired outcomes and can identify key circumstances under which a complex intervention can fail or lead to unintended outcomes.¹⁷ This generative approach accounts for why interventions that ostensibly have the same components of design can have markedly different outcomes in different contexts¹⁹—or, in randomized trials of disease management interventions, why the benefits of affirmative trials are often not replicated or scaled over time in different trials.⁵ Realist approaches view such variations as inevitable consequences of complexity²⁶ rather than weaknesses in interventions or study design, related to intervention design, provision, implementation, or fidelity.¹¹

Realist review aligns well with RM programs for chronic cardiac conditions because these interventions can be termed *complex interventions* due to the number of and interactions between intervention components, including: monitoring program components, the context(s) in which programs are provided, the technology platform(s) used, the theory guiding design and content, and the frequency and intensity of monitoring.^{26,27} Further, program components can be conceived to be multi-faceted and interactive rather than singular and isolated²⁴ — with intervention effects understood to be generated from interactions not only between these components but also between these components and aspects of patients and the context of the intervention.^{25,26} As such, realist approaches are highly suited to examining and explaining the effects of RM programs for chronic cardiac conditions.²⁸

Yet crucially, the existing evidence base has tended to leave the modifying influence of program components, context, and mechanisms unexplored and unacknowledged. See for example: in cardiac rehabilitation,^{29,30} atrial fibrillation (AF),³¹ and heart failure.^{5,32-34} This neglects harms evidence quality,¹¹ reduces its usefulness to decision-makers^{15,16,35} and, ultimately, fails to fully realize the benefits to cardiac patients in different settings of these promising RM programs.¹³

Specifically, therefore, this realist review will seek to explicate how context moderates the mechanisms of interventions to influence outcomes. Accordingly, the review will assess why RM programs for chronic cardiac conditions do or do not work in different contexts or circumstances, by different stakeholders, with different patient populations, and for different purposes. This will be done by exploring the influence on intervention effects and effectiveness of aspects and interactions of intervention mechanisms, with a particular focus on how mechanisms are influenced by aspects of intervention contexts, components, and recipients (including patient characteristics) in published accounts of interventions for the most common chronic cardiac conditions addressed by health services, these being: heart failure, cardiac rehabilitation, AF, and hypertension.

Research Question

To inform decisions about how RM programs can work most effectively, the research question underlying this review is:

What aspects (e.g., duration and frequency of monitoring, what is monitored and how) of RM programs for chronic cardiac conditions or post-cardiac events influence patient and system-level outcomes, for whom, in what circumstances, to what extent, and why?

Research Methods

This realist review will primarily follow the realist review methods of Pawson (2005),¹⁷ drawing on an interpretive approach to synthesis³⁶ which has been used successfully in a past realist review to identify the influence of mechanisms and context on remote and provider-based heart failure disease management interventions.^{34,37} These approaches mirror those of systematic reviews of intervention effects (e.g., incorporating systematic and comprehensive search, quality appraisal, and synthesis of findings), with some modifications to ensure efficiency while accounting for scoping work that has already been conducted and a defined HTA timeline while reflecting the realist underpinning of the approach. While the steps are described sequentially, in practice they will be overlapping and iterative, responding to results as they emerge. The final results will be reported using the RAMESES II guidelines² for the reporting of realist evaluations and will form one part of the broader HTA report.

The primary goal of the realist review is to consider how the effects of RM programs are influenced by aspects of context and intervention components via the influence of these key factors on perceived or actual intervention mechanisms. The realist synthesis will identify studies using a comprehensive and detailed systematic search of published accounts of the mechanisms of RM programs for the most common programs offered for management, behavioural change, and self-care of cardiac conditions. Programs reviewed will be for patients with a primary diagnosis (and reason for program referral) for heart failure, cardiac rehabilitation, AF, and hypertension but may involve patients, family caregivers (e.g., partners or significant others), and health professionals. To explore the influence of program mechanisms with aspects of context, components, and patient characteristics on outcomes,

as with other approaches to theory-building from qualitative data, the approach will generate findings that move beyond description to present a new interpretation of published literature — which can offer additional insight into the phenomena of RM programs¹⁷ (for example Clark et al., 2016).³⁷

The findings of the review will be based on a literature search and responses to the CADTH Programs for RM Survey.³⁸ Reflecting the RAMESES II publication standards for realist synthesis,² the search approach will recognize that the quality of a search in a realist synthesis depends on the "relevance and robustness of particular data for the purposes of answering a specific question."² Relevance refers to the ability of data to contribute to the development of testing of theory around the research question,² while rigour refers to the credibility and trustworthiness of these data.² Accordingly, the search will seek data that could be of reasonable use to theory-building around program mechanisms — extending to those from qualitative and mixed-methods studies, quantitative-process data and grey literature, including program reports. All could conceivably contribute to "different ways of identifying and elucidating program theories."² As the number of documents anticipated to be identified in the search is expected to be large, selection and appraisal stages will be done in parallel with the synthesis stage.²

Literature Search Methods

The search for literature to support this realist review will be performed by a research information specialist using a peer-reviewed search strategy according to the Peer Review of Electronic Search Strategies checklist (PRESS).³⁹ The complete search strategy is presented in Appendix 1.

Published literature will be identified by searching the following bibliographic databases: MEDLINE All (1946–) via Ovid, Embase (1974–) via Ovid, APA PsycINFO (1806–) via Ovid, the Cumulative Index to Nursing and Allied Health Literature (CINAHL) via EBSCO, and Scopus. The search strategy will be comprised of both controlled vocabularies, such as the National Library of Medicine's MeSH (Medical Subject Headings), and keywords. The main search concepts will include chronic cardiac conditions, cardiac rehabilitation, and RM.

Clinical trials registries will be searched: the US National Institutes of Health's clinicaltrials.gov, WHO's International Clinical Trials Registry Platform search portal, Health Canada's Clinical Trials Database, and the European Union Clinical Trials Register.

No filters will be applied to limit the retrieval by study type. The search will be limited to English and French language documents published after January 1, 2010. Conference abstracts will be excluded from the search results.

The initial search will be completed in autumn 2020. Regular alerts will update the search until the publication of the final report. The clinical trials registries search will be updated prior to the completion of the stakeholder feedback period. Studies meeting the selection criteria of the review and identified in the alerts prior to the completion of the stakeholder feedback period will be incorporated into the analysis of the final report. Any studies that were identified after the stakeholder feedback period will be described in the discussion, with a focus on comparing the results of these new studies with the results of the analysis conducted for this report.

Grey literature (literature that is not commercially published) will be identified by searching sources listed in relevant sections of the Grey Matters: A Practical Tool For Searching Health-Related Grey Literature checklist (<u>https://www.cadth.ca/grey-matters</u>),⁴⁰ which

includes the websites of regulatory agencies, HTA agencies, clinical guideline repositories, systematic review repositories, patient-related groups, and professional associations. Google will be used to search for additional Internet-based materials. See Appendix 1 for more information on the grey literature search strategy.

Selection and Eligibility Criteria

The study eligibility criteria can be found in Table1.

Table 1: Inclusion Criteria for Information Screening using SPIDER

Sample	Adults persons living with a chronic cardiac condition (as defined as physician-confirmed diagnosis of: heart failure, hypertension, and AF) or post-cardiac event (i.e., heart attack, cardiac surgery, heart transplant, or angioplasty in cardiac rehabilitation or similar secondary prevention disease management program); persons who care for those living with a chronic cardiac condition or post-cardiac event (e.g., partners, family, health care providers).
Phenomena of interest	Perceived or actual mechanisms of RM programs as defined as: formal RM offered by a health care organization, including programs of both no pre-specified duration and pre-specified duration set in primary, home, tertiary, community, or long-term care based intervention/service) in rural, remote, and urban areas.
Design	Studies containing data or themes, which could be reasonably interpreted as relating to program mechanisms.
Evaluation	Perspectives, experiences, or program-related data for people living with a chronic cardiac condition or post-cardiac event and who engaged with RM programs ^a , and of those involved in their care.
Research type	Qualitative, mixed-method, or quantitative studies reporting primary data or dedicated themes extractable for chronic cardiac study populations reported in English.

^a For the management of patients with relevant cardiovascular conditions, not diagnosis or detection of the cardiovascular conditions.

The review will not include studies published before January 1, 2010; and will extend to grey literature and program evaluations. Date restrictions may be imposed during the review should the volume of studies identified be judged to be excessively large.

Exclusion criteria:

- Studies not meeting the inclusion criteria outlined in Table 1
- Studies which do not contain data extractable specifically for chronic cardiac conditions or post-cardiac events
- Studies addressing single, one-off, or ad hoc RM techniques
- Studies addressing hypertension associated with pregnancy

The approach to mechanisms proposed is important because mechanisms are defined poorly, narrowly, or not at all in many past realist reviews,⁴¹ but nevertheless, serve the vital explanatory function of accounting for why particular programs have the effects they do. In short, mechanisms "explain why the relationships come about...(and) establish what goes on in the system that connects its various inputs and outputs."⁴¹ This definition reflects Pawson and Tilley's (1997)¹⁹ original program-focused approach in which "Mechanisms describe what it is about programs and interventions that bring about any effects... as the workings of a clock (mechanisms) cannot be seen but drive the patterned movements of the hands."¹⁹ As such, in this review, mechanisms will be defined as referring to the "...underlying entities, processes, or...structures which operate in particular contexts to generate outcomes of interest."⁴²

This definition of mechanisms is inclusive, credible (reflecting past approaches to defining mechanisms),⁴² and ultimately useful. In short, it provides a fruitful basis for identifying how RM programs could be adapted for different settings. It is not, however, straightforward in that mechanisms of programs may not be directly observable (though they can be inferred),⁴² not readily measurable (though they can be captured via qualitative data), or objective (though they can be perceived).¹⁸ Further, in health services interventions, research into mechanisms remains rudimentary and challenging — with mechanisms being defined, conceived, and researched in many different often vague ways — or lacking in any systematic definition at all.¹⁸ That said, the presence and influence of mechanisms on outcomes can be inferred from both dedicated realist evaluations (i.e., studies collecting primary data using variations of realist evaluation) and studies using other methods that contain qualitative or quantitative data on mechanisms,² including studies of mechanisms and context in health services for cardiac conditions.³⁷

For many years, systematic reviews demonstrated that context was comparatively neglected in published accounts of realist evaluations.⁴² This is a major weakness because the moderating effects of context on mechanisms is a core tenet of realist evaluation¹⁹ and do appear to influence outcomes and mechanisms in health service programs for cardiac conditions.³⁴ Given the relatively small number of existing published realist evaluations, it is unrealistic to identify clearly delineated, almost mathematical context-mechanism-outcome synergies as envisaged by some theorists⁴¹ working in realist evaluation. However, as with mechanisms, the influence of context on mechanisms can be inferred for complex interventions for cardiac conditions from realist evaluations, qualitative, quantitative, and mixed-method studies,² (Strachan et al., 2014).³⁴ As such the review search will focus on published accounts of mechanisms but in the identified studies explore instances in which context has been found to moderate these mechanisms.

Screening and Selecting Studies for Inclusion

Due to the high number of articles the search is anticipated to identify during the preliminary search stage (level 1), four reviewers working in two dyads will independently screen titles and abstracts in DistillerSR⁴³ against the pre-determined inclusion criteria (Table 1). The DistillerAI tool will also be used during level 1 screening to identify studies earlier in the screening process which are most likely to meet the inclusion criteria⁴⁴ and act as an additional screener to review references and check for errors. In testing in 10 systematic reviews (including non-pharmacological therapies), this tool was found to be sufficiently accurate and sensitive in screening procedures.⁴⁴ If the reviewers cannot judge relevancy from the titles and abstracts alone, full-text copies of articles will be obtained for more detailed screening (level 2). The reviewers in each dyad will then compare their chosen included and excluded studies; disagreements will be recorded and discussed with a fifth reviewer (a project leader) until a consensus is reached on selection. The study selection process will be presented in a Preferred Reporting Items for Systematic Reviews and Meta-Analyses (PRISMA)⁴⁵ flowchart which will be generated in DistillerSR.⁴³ A list of included studies and those excluded after full-text screening with reasons will be provided.

A pilot exercise will be undertaken between the four reviewers to test the screening procedures and inclusion criteria with a cohort of five papers randomly selected from the Perspectives and Experiences Review of the larger HTA. A project leader will check the accuracy and consistency of the reviewers' screening and selection decisions. Feedback will be provided to reviewers and criteria and procedures will be amended as necessary. If necessary, additional pilot exercises utilizing five randomly selected papers will be

conducted and the process described above will be repeated until consistency among reviewers is achieved.

Data Extraction

Data extraction will be performed by the project leaders. For each study included in the review (from levels 1 and 2), one project leader will perform data extraction using standardized data extraction templates within DistillerSR.⁴³ For each included study, the second project leader will check the data extraction for completeness and accuracy. Omissions or disagreements will be recorded and discussed by the two project leaders and resolved by consensus. A panel of study experts across the cardiac conditions will be consulted in instances in which disagreements in data extraction cannot be resolved.

A data extraction template will be developed by one project leader within DistillerSR,⁴³ using a form developed for a previously funded realist review of disease management interventions for heart failure¹⁸ as a guide. Where possible categorical fields will be used. The extraction template will be pilot tested using three randomly selected articles initially by the second project leader. Amendments from the pilot extraction stage will be made before commencing extraction for the full review.

For each included study, the following details will be extracted. Missing data will be noted.

- Publication title
- First author
- Full citation
- Main focus (heart failure, AF, hypertension, cardiac rehabilitation)
- Program recipient(s) (patient, caregiver, health professional, other)
- Method category (qualitative, quantitative, mixed, unclear)
- Qualitative (general, grounded theory, ethnography, critical, experiential, other)
- Quantitative (survey, trial, case control, cohort, other)
- · Country of setting
- Inclusion criteria
- Population studied (inpatient, outpatient, community)
- Sex of sample (m/f)
- Mean age
- Recruitment method (volunteer, snowball, purposive, random, other)
- Data collection method (face-to-face interview, telephone interview, online interview, focus group, measurement, other)
- RM components (telemonitoring, home telehealth, data transfer, other)
- RM adjuncts (home-visit, clinical-visit, none)
- Data transfer (ECG, blood pressure, heart rate, body weight).

Concerning mechanisms, verbatim data, and themes will be cut and pasted from published studies into a primary data extraction matrix (DistillerSR)⁴³ with main identified contextual effects. For qualitative studies, data will be derived from themes or data relating to

mechanisms, while for quantitative or mixed-method studies, primary numerical data will be extracted from each study that is interpreted as giving insight into underlying mechanisms. In deciding whether data or themes are pertinent to the synthesis, project leaders will consider if the identified data offer an explanatory account of what is going on between the intervention(s) and its outcomes (stage I synthesis below). As such, data or themes will not necessarily be specifically labelled as pertaining to mechanisms in study reports but must be reasonably interpreted as pertaining to mechanisms of RM aspects of interventions for cardiac conditions to be included. Authors will be contacted (via emails in included and/or recent publications) to attain any missing data from study reports and the existence of any additional data or themes on mechanisms.

Fields may be modified, added, or deleted during data extraction to aid with the data analysis and assessment of transferability. Study and participant characteristics will be reported in tables and summarized narratively.

Critical Appraisal

Realist reviews should report the overall strengths of evidence supporting the explanatory insights that emerged.² Consequently, for each included study, to assess the merits of the research, the project leaders will appraise the quality of included studies using the appropriate quality appraisal tools from the Centre for Evidence-Based Medicine (University of Oxford) for qualitative and quantitative studies (Critical Appraisal Skills Program [CASP])⁴⁶ and the Mixed Method Appraisal Tool (MMAT) for mixed-method studies.⁴⁷ These tools are narrative-based (i.e., they do not compute a quality score). The quality of each study will be categorized independently as low, moderate, or high by the primary and secondary project leaders using the appropriate CASP tool of quality appraisal with project leaders resolving disagreements until a consensus is reached. Justification(s) for the critical appraisal will be noted in narrative form. The papers will be screened against quality criteria but not excluded based on quality, given long and ongoing disagreement over the use of quality criteria to appraise research.⁴⁸ Each project leader will act as a primary quality appraiser for half of the finalized cohort of included studies, acting as the second check for the other project leader. Disagreements in critical appraisal will be recorded, discussed, and resolved by consensus.

The results of the critical appraisal will be reported as a narrative summary and in a Table of Critical Appraisal documenting key study strengths and weaknesses for each of the included studies.

Data Analysis and Synthesis

Data synthesis will be carried out by the two project leaders, who will each undertake the synthesis of findings from half of the final cohort of included papers. The approach to analysis and synthesis to be used has been employed in a previously funded realist review into the mechanisms of disease management interventions for heart failure.³⁷ As was the case with this past review, qualitative and quantitative data are useful in understanding mechanisms of RM interventions. Consequently, both types of data will be synthesized. Though necessary, this is challenging because the synthesis of qualitative and quantitative research together remains relatively new; also mechanisms usually have to be inferred or interpreted from these data as opposed to being clearly labelled in studies.⁴² To address these challenges, a combination of established approaches to identify main mechanisms will be used: the realist-synthesis approach¹⁷ and meta-ethnography.³⁶

Stage one

Each project leader will read each study in the final cohort to identify or infer the main mechanisms in the studies and extract data as described above. Two types of data will be extracted: qualitative data relating to mechanisms and quantitative data that yield clues of underlying mechanisms.⁴⁹ *For qualitative studies*, data will be derived from themes or data relating to mechanisms. As per guidance for the systematic review of mechanisms, in a manner similar to meta-synthesis,³⁶ the project leader will extract the same words and terms as the original studies as much as is possible when extracting these subjective data around mechanisms.¹⁷ *For quantitative studies*, primary numerical data will be extracted from each study that is interpreted as giving insights into underlying mechanisms with a narrative account of what these data refer to. In qualitative and quantitative studies, data and themes will be extracted related to mechanisms irrespective of whether these data are self-identified by authors to constitute mechanisms. This is normal in realist evaluation when mechanisms are theorized or inferred from data.⁵⁰

Stage two (second-order coding)

Each project leader will examine the initial mechanisms and study descriptions identified during stage one, and using the meta-ethnography method, will meet to discuss emerging mechanisms from the stage one synthesis, then using conceptual mindmaps⁵¹ translate and synthesize both the qualitative and quantitative data into a core set of qualitative data about the nature of the main mechanisms and how aspects of context and study design influence these mechanisms (recorded in Matrix 1). Hence, as per meta-ethnography,³⁶ data from different types of studies are triangulated and interpretations will be applied to the extracted data. Higher-order concepts will be identified as codes through comparison of mechanisms found in original studies that will be reinterpreted in the context of the other studies. The approach to theory development will be discursive with emerging themes and theorizations discussed extensively and resolved by consensus.

A matrix (Matrix 2) will be used to organize data on mechanisms and study details for this stage; separate sections will record mechanisms linked to key factors, such as, but not restricted to sex, age, and disease type or severity. The project leaders will analyze Matrix 2 independently and then discuss the analyses in consultation with the panel of experts. This will support the discussion of emerging results with knowledge users, and garner additional and possible alternative interpretations of the data.

Stage three (synthesis)

As with Noblit and Hare (1988),³⁶ the project leaders will generate the final synthesis account with an interpretive analysis⁵² of Matrix 2 to generate an account of the main mechanisms acting in each type of self-care intervention and a description of how each is affected by context and populations. These interpretations will be collated in the final report.

Results and conclusions will take the form of caveats and considerations for those involved in the delivery of RM programs, such as "'remember A', 'beware of B', 'take care of C', 'D can result in both E and F', 'Gs and Hs are likely to interpret I quite differently', 'if you try J make sure that K, L, and M have also been considered.'"¹⁷



Rigour and Methodological Uniformity

While the data on mechanisms are heterogeneous and potentially difficult to identify, metaethnography has also been used to identify mechanisms using primary qualitative and quantitative data⁵³ and is well suited to examining the mechanisms of interventions for cardiac conditions — an effort for which literature is not primarily grounded in the social science.¹⁸

Panel of Experts

To support the project team, a panel of international experts on cardiac conditions will provide expert input to the review — notably providing consultation in regard to RM for different kinds of cardiac conditions. The panel will include:

- Associate Professor Julie Redfern (University of Western Sydney; RM in cardiac rehabilitation/secondary prevention/hypotension)
- Dr. Liz Sturgiss (Monash University; RM in primary care)
- Professor Lis Neubeck (Napier University; RM in AF)
- Professor David R. Thompson (Queens University, Belfast; RM in heart failure, cardiac rehabilitation, secondary prevention)
- Dr. Chantal F. Ski (Queens University, Belfast; RM in heart failure, hypotension)
- Professor Kay Currie (Glasgow Caledonian University; RM in cardiac rehabilitation, secondary prevention).

Input from these experts will be sought for the design of data extraction forms, key papers for screening, disagreements over inclusion, and recommendations from the review for RM in clinical practice for discrete cardiac disease populations and settings.

Final Reporting

The final report will be written using the appropriate RAMESES II reporting standards for realist review,² with study inclusion documented using PRISMA recommendations.⁴⁵

Protocol Amendments

If amendments are required at any time during the study, reasons for changes will be recorded in a study file and subsequently reported within the final study report. If necessary, a rescreening of the previous literature search or an updated literature search will be performed to capture additional data, according to the amendments.

References

- Remote monitoring programs for cardiac conditions project protocol. (CADTH health technology assessment project protocol). Ottawa (ON): CADTH; 2020: <u>https://cadth.ca/sites/default/files/ou-tr/op0549-remote-monitoring-cardiac-conditions-protocol.pdf</u>. Accessed 2020 Nov 13.
- 2. Wong G, Greenhalgh T, Westhorp G, Buckingham J, Pawson R. RAMESES publication standards: realist syntheses. BMC Med. 2013;11(1):21.
- 3. Greenhalgh T, A'Court C, Shaw S. Understanding heart failure; explaining telehealth a hermeneutic systematic review. *BMC Cardiovasc Disord.* 2017;17(1):156.
- 4. Pawson R. The Science of Evaluation: a Realist Manifesto. London (UK): Sage Publications Ltd; 2013.
- 5. Clark AM, Thompson DR. What heart failure programme works best? Wrong question, wrong assumptions. Eur J Heart Fail. 2010;12(12):1271-1273.
- 6. Kalogirou F, Forsyth F, Kyriakou M, Mantle R, Deaton C. Heart failure disease management: a systematic review of effectiveness in heart failure with preserved ejection fraction. ESC Heart Fail. 2020;7(1):194-212.
- Jin K, Khonsari S, Gallagher R, et al. Telehealth interventions for the secondary prevention of coronary heart disease: A systematic review and metaanalysis. Eur J Cardiovasc Nurs. 2019;18(4):260-271.
- 8. Neubeck L, Redfern J, Fernandez R, Briffa T, Bauman A, Freedman SB. Telehealth interventions for the secondary prevention of coronary heart disease: a systematic review. *Eur J Cardiovasc Prev Rehabil.* 2009;16(3):281-289.
- Clark AM, Hartling L, Vandermeer B, Lissel SL, McAlister FA. Secondary prevention programmes for coronary heart disease: a meta-regression showing the merits of shorter, generalist, primary care-based interventions. *Eur J Cardiovasc Prev Rehabil.* 2007;14(4):538-546.
- 10. Anderson L, Sharp GA, Norton RJ, et al. Home-based versus centre-based cardiac rehabilitation. Cochrane Database Syst Rev. 2017;6(6):Cd007130.
- 11. Clark AM, Savard LA, Thompson DR. What is the strength of evidence for heart failure disease-management programs? *J Am Coll Cardiol.* 2009;54(5):397-401.
- 12. Savard LA, Thompson DR, Clark AM. A meta-review of evidence on heart failure disease management programs: the challenges of describing and synthesizing evidence on complex interventions. *Trials.* 2011;12:194.
- 13. Clark AM, Redfern J, Thompson DR, Briffa T. More data, better data or improved evidence translation: what will improve cardiovascular outcomes? Int J Cardiol. 2012;155(3):347-349.
- Clark AM, McAlister FA, Hartling L, Vandermeer B, University of Alberta Evidence-based Practice Centre. Randomized Trials of Secondary Prevention Programs in Coronary Artery Disease: A Systematic Review. (*Technology assessment*). Rockville (MD): Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (US); 2005: <u>https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Coverage/DeterminationProcess/Downloads/id31TA.pdf</u>. Accessed 2020 Nov 26.
- 15. Clark AM, Thompson DR. Telemedicine and remote management of heart failure. Lancet. 2011;378(9806):e9; author reply e10.
- 16. Clark AM, Thompson DR. The future of management programmes for heart failure. Lancet. 2008;372(9641):784-786.
- 17. Pawson R, Greenhalgh T, Harvey G, Walshe K. Realist review--a new method of systematic review designed for complex policy interventions. *J Health* Serv Res Policy. 2005;10 Suppl 1:21-34.
- 18. Clark AM, Thirsk LM, Wiens KS, Ski CF, Thompson DR. How to research the mechanisms of non-pharmacological cardiac interventions. *Int J Cardiol.* 2015;201:457-461.
- 19. Pawson R, Tilley N. Realistic Evaluation. London (UK): Sage Publications Ltd; 1997.
- 20. Bhaskar R. The possibility of naturalism: a philosophical critique of the contemporary human sciences. New York (NY): Routledge; 2014.
- 21. Byrne DS. Complexity Theory and the Social Sciences: An Introduction. New York (NY): Routledge; 1998.
- 22. Clark AM, Lissel SL, Davis C. Complex critical realism: tenets and application in nursing research. ANS Adv Nurs Sci. 2008;31(4):E67-79.
- 23. Clark AM, Briffa TG, Thirsk L, Neubeck L, Redfern J. What football teaches us about researching complex health interventions. BMJ. 2012;345:e8316.
- 24. Clark AM. What are the components of complex interventions in healthcare? Theorizing approaches to parts, powers and the whole intervention. Soc Sci Med. 2013;93:185-193.
- 25. Clark AM, Sturgiss EA. Using critical realism in primary care research: an overview of methods. Fam Pract. 2020;37(1):143-145.
- 26. Craig P, Dieppe P, Macintyre S, Michie S, Nazareth I, Petticrew M. Developing and evaluating complex interventions: the new Medical Research Council guidance. *BMJ.* 2008;337:a1655.
- 27. Abraham C, Michie S. A taxonomy of behavior change techniques used in interventions. Health Psychol. 2008;27(3):379-387.
- 28. Allana S, Clark A. Applying Meta-Theory to Qualitative and Mixed-Methods Research. Int J Qual Methods. 2018;17(1):1609406918790042.
- 29. Clark AM. Home based cardiac rehabilitation. BMJ. 2010;340:b5510.
- 30. Thompson DR, Ski CF, Clark AM. Cardiac rehabilitation and secondary prevention: Wrong terms, aims, models and outcomes? *Eur J Prev Cardiol.* 2019;26(9):995-997.

- 31. Clark AM, Hsu ZY. Addressing the growing burden of atrial fibrillation: evidence, sustainability and accessibility more important than territory. Eur J Prev Cardiol. 2012;19(5):1089-1090.
- 32. Thompson DR, Clark AM. Heart failure disease management interventions: time for a reappraisal. Eur J Heart Fail. 2020;22(4):578-580.
- 33. Thompson DR, Ski CF, Clark AM. Transitional Care Interventions for Heart Failure: What Are the Mechanisms? Am J Med. 2019;132(3):278-280.
- 34. Strachan PH, Currie K, Harkness K, Spaling M, Clark AM. Context matters in heart failure self-care: a qualitative systematic review. *J Card Fail.* 2014;20(6):448-455.
- 35. Clark AM, MacIntyre PD, Cruickshank J. A critical realist approach to understanding and evaluating heart health programmes. *Health (London)*. 2007;11(4):513-539.
- 36. Noblit GW, Hare RD. Meta-ethnography: synthesizing qualitative studies. London (UK): SAGE Publications, Inc; 1988.
- 37. Clark AM, Wiens KS, Banner D, et al. A systematic review of the main mechanisms of heart failure disease management interventions. *Heart.* 2016;102(9):707-711.
- Remote Monitoring Programs for Cardiac Conditions in Canada. (CADTH environmental scan). Ottawa (ON): CADTH; [forthcoming]: <u>https://cadth.ca/remote-monitoring-programs-cardiac-conditions-canada</u>. Accessed 2020 Nov 27.
- McGowan J, Sampson M, Salzwedel DM, Cogo E, Foerster V, Lefebvre C. PRESS Peer Review of Electronic Search Strategies: 2015 guideline statement. J Clin Epidemiol. 2016;75:40-46.
- 40. Grey matters: a practical tool for searching health-related grey literature. Ottawa (ON): CADTH; 2019: <u>https://www.cadth.ca/grey-matters</u>. Accessed 2020 Nov 23.
- 41. Dalkin SM, Greenhalgh J, Jones D, Cunningham B, Lhussier M. What's in a mechanism? Development of a key concept in realist evaluation. *Implement Sci.* 2015;10(1):49.
- 42. Astbury B, Leeuw FL. Unpacking Black Boxes: Mechanisms and Theory Building in Evaluation. Am J Eval. 2010;31(3):363-381.
- 43. DistillerSR [computer program]. Ottawa (ON): Evidence Partners; 2017.
- 44. Hamel C, Kelly SE, Thavorn K, Rice DB, Wells GA, Hutton B. An evaluation of DistillerSR's machine learning-based prioritization tool for title/abstract screening impact on reviewer-relevant outcomes. *BMC Med Res Methodol.* 2020;20(1):256.
- 45. Moher D, Liberati A, Tetzlaff J, Altman DG. Preferred reporting items for systematic reviews and meta-analyses: the PRISMA statement. *PLoS Med.* 2009;6(7):e1000097.
- 46. CASP checklists. Oxford (UK): CASP UK; 2018: https://casp-uk.net/casp-tools-checklists/. Accessed 2020 Oct 18.
- 47. Hong QN, Fabregues S, Bartlett G, et al. The Mixed Methods Appraisal Tool (MMAT) version 2018 for information professionals and researchers. *Educ Inf.* 2018;34(4):285-291.
- 48. Barbour RS. Checklists for improving rigour in qualitative research: a case of the tail wagging the dog? BMJ. 2001;322(7294):1115-1117.
- 49. Ron A. Regression Analysis and the Philosophy of Social Science. J Crit Realism. 2002;1(1):119-142.
- 50. Pawson R. Does Megan's Law work? A Theory-driven systematic review: working paper 8. London (UK): ESRC UK Centre for Evidence Based Policy and Practice, Queen Mary, University of London; 2002: <u>https://www.kcl.ac.uk/sspp/departments/politicaleconomy/research/cep/pubs/papers/assets/wp8.pdf</u>. Accessed 2020 Nov 13.
- 51. Wheeldon J, Faubert J. Framing Experience: Concept Maps, Mind Maps, and Data Collection in Qualitative Research. Int J Qual Methods. 2009;8(3):68-83.
- 52. Dixon-Woods M, Agarwal S, Young B, Jones D, Sutton A. Integrative Approaches to Qualitative and Quantitative Evidence. London (UK): Health Development Agency; 2004.
- 53. Ragin CC, Strand SI. Using Qualitative Comparative Analysis to Study Causal Order. Sociol Methods Res. 2008;36(4):431-441.

Appendix 1: Literature Search Strategy

Realist Literature Search

OVERVIEW			
Interface:		Ovid	
Databases:		MEDLINE All (1946-present) Embase (1974-present) APA PsycINFO (1806-present) Note: Subject headings have been customized for each database. Duplicates between databases were removed in Ovid.	
Date of Search	ו:	Autumn 2020	
Alerts:		Monthly search updates until project completion	
Study Types:		Realist reviews	
Limits:		Publication date limit: January 01, 2010 to present Humans Language limit: English or French Conference abstracts: excluded	
SYNTAX GUI	DE		
1	At the end of a phrase, searches the phrase as a subject heading		
MeSH	Medical S	Medical Subject Heading	
ехр	Explode a subject heading		
*	Before a word, indicates that the marked subject heading is a primary topic; or, after a word, a truncation symbol (wildcard) to retrieve plurals or varying endings		
adj#	Requires terms to be adjacent to each other within # number of words (in any order)		
.ti	Title		
.ab	Abstract		
.kf	Author keyword heading word (MEDLINE)		
.kw	Author keyword (Embase)		
.id	Key concepts (PyscINFO)		
.yr	Publication year		
.jw	Journal word title (MEDLINE)		
.jx	Journal word (Embase, PsycINFO)		
medall	Ovid database code: MEDLINE All, 1946 to present, updated daily		
oemezd	Ovid database code; Embase, 1974 to present, updated daily		
pysh	Ovid database code: APA PsycINFO 1806 to present, updated weekly		

OVID MULTI-DATABASE STRATEGY

Line #	Search Strategy
1	exp heart failure/
2	((heart or cardiac* or cardio* or myocardi* or diastolic* or systolic* or paroxysmal*) adj5 (failure* or edema* or oedema* or decompensation* or dyspnea* or asthma* or chronic* or insufficien*)).ti,ab,kf.
3	((preserved ejection* or reduced ejection*) adj5 fraction*).ti,ab,kf.
4	(congestive heart* adj5 disease*).ti,ab,kf.
5	((cardio renal* or cardiorenal* or reno cardiac* or renocardiac*) adj5 syndrome*).ti,ab,kf.



	OVID MULTI-DATABASE STRATEGY		
Line #	Search Strategy		
6	exp Hypertension/		
7	(hypertension* or ((high* or elevat*) adj5 (blood pressure* or bloodpressure* or diastolic pressure* or systolic pressure*))).ti,ab,kf.		
8	exp Arrhythmias, Cardiac/		
9	(arrhythmia* or dysrhythmia* or bradycardia* or bradyarrhythmia* or tachycardia* or tachyarrhythmia*).ti,ab,kf.		
10	((irregular* or slow* or rapid* or fast or junctional*) adj3 (heartbeat* or heart beat* or rhythm*)).ti,ab,kf.		
11	((atrial or auricular or ventricular) adj5 (fibrillation* or flutter*)).ti,ab,kf.		
12	((heart rhythm* or cardiac rhythm*) adj5 disorder*).ti,ab,kf.		
13	(premature adj3 (atrial or ventricular or junctional or cardiac) adj3 (contraction* or complex*)).ti,ab,kf.		
14	((accelerat* or junctional*) adj5 rhythm*).ti,ab,kf.		
15	(extra beats or heart block or heart blocks or AV block or AV blocks).ti,ab,kf.		
16	Coronary Artery Disease/		
17	(atherosclerosis or atheroscleroses or arteriosclerosis or arterioscleroses or (coronary adj5 disease*)).ti,ab,kf.		
18	(hard* adj3 arter*).ti,ab,kf.		
19	(plaque adj4 build*).ti,ab,kf.		
20	Cardiac Rehabilitation/		
21	((cardiac* or cardio* or heart*) adj5 (rehab* or conditioning*)).ti,ab,kf.		
22	or/1-21		
23	exp telemedicine/ or exp Telemetry/ or exp Videoconferencing/ or exp computer communication networks/ or Mobile Applications/		
24	(teleconsult* or telemonitor* or RPC or RPM or telemetry or telemetric* or telepatholog* or teleradialog* or videoconference* or video conference* or asynchron* or ((remote or tele or virtual or rural or urban) adj5 (consult* or monitor* or checkin or check in or pathol* or radialog*))).ti,ab,kf.		
25	(telehealth* or telemed* or telecommunicat* or tele communicat* or e health* or ehealth* or m health* or mhealth* or e consult* or econsult* or telecar* or HBPMTM or ((tele or mobile or virtual) adj5 (health* or med* or care or caring or visit or visits or appointment*))).ti,ab,kf.		
26	(telerehab* or ((remote* or tele* or virtual*) adj5 rehab*)).ti,ab,kf.		
27	(telemed* or tele med* or telehealth* or tele health* or telerehab* or tele rehab* or telecar* or tele car* or e health* or ehealth or m Health* or mHealth* or e consult* or econsult*).jw.		
28	or/23-27		
29	22 and 28		
30	29 use medall		
31	exp heart failure/		
32	((heart or cardiac* or cardio* or myocardi* or diastolic* or systolic* or paroxysmal*) adj5 (failure* or edema* or oedema* or decompensation* or dyspnea* or asthma* or chronic* or insufficien*)).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
33	((preserved ejection* or reduced ejection*) adj5 fraction*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
34	(congestive heart* adj5 disease*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
35	((cardio renal* or cardiorenal* or reno cardiac* or renocardiac*) adj5 syndrome*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
36	exp hypertension/		
37	(hypertension* or ((high* or elevat*) adj5 (blood pressure* or bloodpressure* or diastolic pressure* or systolic pressure*))).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
38	exp heart arrhythmia/		
39	(arrhythmia* or dysrhythmia* or bradycardia* or bradyarrhythmia* or tachycardia* or tachyarrhythmia*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		

	OVID MULTI-DATABASE STRATEGY		
Line #	Search Strategy		
40	((irregular* or slow* or rapid* or fast or junctional*) adj3 (heartbeat* or heart beat* or rhythm*)).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
41	((atrial or auricular or ventricular) adj5 (fibrillation* or flutter*)).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
42	((heart rhythm* or cardiac rhythm*) adj5 disorder*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
43	(premature adj3 (atrial or ventricular or junctional or cardiac) adj3 (contraction* or complex*)).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
44	((accelerat* or junctional*) adj5 rhythm*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
45	(extra beats or heart block or heart blocks or AV block or AV blocks).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
46	exp coronary artery disease/		
47	(atherosclerosis or atheroscleroses or arteriosclerosis or arterioscleroses or (coronary adj5 disease*)).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
48	(hard* adj3 arter*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
49	(plaque adj4 build*).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
50	heart rehabilitation/		
51	((cardiac* or cardio* or heart*) adj5 (rehab* or conditioning*)).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
52	or/31-51		
53	telehealth/ or telemedicine/ or telecardiology/ or telenursing/ or teleconsultation/ or telediagnosis/ or telemonitoring/ or telepathology/ or teleradiology/ or telerehabilitation/ or teletherapy/ or telemetry/ or remote sensing/ or telephone telemetry/ or videoconferencing/ or exp computer network/ or exp internet/ or social media/ or mobile application/		
54	(teleconsult* or telemonitor* or RPC or RPM or telemetry or telemetric* or telepatholog* or teleradialog* or videoconference* or video conference* or asynchron* or ((remote or tele or virtual or rural or urban) adj5 (consult* or monitor* or checkin or check in or pathol* or radialog*))).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
55	(telehealth* or telemed* or telecommunicat* or tele communicat* or e health* or ehealth* or m health* or mhealth* or e consult* or econsult* or telecar* or HBPMTM or ((tele or mobile or virtual) adj5 (health* or med* or care or caring or visit or visits or appointment*))).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
56	(telerehab* or ((remote* or tele* or virtual*) adj5 rehab*)).ti,ab,kw,dq.		
57	(telemed* or tele med* or telehealth* or tele health* or telerehab* or tele rehab* or telecar* or tele car* or e health* or ehealth or m Health* or mHealth* or e consult* or econsult*).jx.		
58	or/53-57		
59	52 and 58		
60	59 use oemezd		
61	60 not conference abstract.pt.		
62	exp heart/ and failure/		
63	((heart or cardiac* or cardio* or myocardi* or diastolic* or systolic* or paroxysmal*) adj5 (failure* or edema* or oedema* or decompensation* or dyspnea* or asthma* or chronic* or insufficien*)).ti,ab,id.		
64	((preserved ejection* or reduced ejection*) adj5 fraction*).ti,ab,id.		
65	(congestive heart* adj5 disease*).ti,ab,id.		
66	((cardio renal* or cardiorenal* or reno cardiac* or renocardiac*) adj5 syndrome*).ti,ab,id.		
67	exp Hypertension/ or exp Blood Pressure/		
68	(hypertension* or ((high* or elevat*) adj5 (blood pressure* or bloodpressure* or diastolic pressure* or systolic pressure*))).ti,ab,id.		
69	exp "Arrhythmias (Heart)"/		
70	(arrhythmia* or dysrhythmia* or bradycardia* or bradyarrhythmia* or tachycardia* or tachyarrhythmia*).ti,ab,id.		
71	((irregular* or slow* or rapid* or fast or junctional*) adj3 (heartbeat* or heart beat* or rhythm*)).ti,ab,id.		
72	((atrial or auricular or ventricular) adj5 (fibrillation* or flutter*)).ti,ab,id.		
73	((heart rhythm* or cardiac rhythm*) adj5 disorder*).ti,ab,id.		

OVID MULTI-DATABASE STRATEGY		
Line #	Search Strategy	
74	(premature adj3 (atrial or ventricular or junctional or cardiac) adj3 (contraction* or complex*)).ti,ab,id.	
75	((accelerat* or junctional*) adj5 rhythm*).ti,ab,id.	
76	(extra beats or heart block or heart blocks or AV block or AV blocks).ti,ab,id.	
77	Heart Disorders/	
78	(atherosclerosis or atheroscleroses or arteriosclerosis or arterioscleroses or (coronary adj5 disease*)).ti,ab,id.	
79	(hard* adj3 arter*).ti,ab,id.	
80	(plaque adj4 build*).ti,ab,id.	
81	exp heart/ and (rehabilitation/ or physical therapy/)	
82	((cardiac* or cardio* or heart*) adj5 (rehab* or conditioning*)).ti,ab,id.	
83	or/62-82	
84	telemedicine/ or online therapy/ or exp teleconferencing/ or teleconsultation/ or telerehabilitation/ or Telemetry/ or computer mediated communication/ or internet/ or internet usage/ or online social networks/ or "smartphone use"/ or mobile applications/ or digital interventions/	
85	(teleconsult* or telemonitor* or RPC or RPM or telemetry or telemetric* or telepatholog* or teleradialog* or videoconference* or video conference* or asynchron* or ((remote or tele or virtual or rural or urban) adj5 (consult* or monitor* or checkin or check in or pathol* or radialog*))).ti,ab,id.	
86	(telehealth* or telemed* or telecommunicat* or tele communicat* or e health* or ehealth* or m health* or mhealth* or e consult* or econsult* or telecar* or HBPMTM or ((tele or mobile or virtual) adj5 (health* or med* or care or caring or visit or visits or appointment*))).ti,ab,id.	
87	(telerehab* or ((remote* or tele* or virtual*) adj5 rehab*)).ti,ab,id.	
88	(telemed* or tele med* or telehealth* or tele health* or telerehab* or tele rehab* or telecar* or tele car* or e health* or ehealth or m Health* or mHealth* or e consult* or econsult*).jx.	
89	or/84-88	
90	83 and 89	
91	90 use psyh	
92	30 or 61 or 91	
93	limit 92 to yr=2010-current	
94	limit 93 to (English or French)	

OTHER DATABASES	
Scopus	Searched to capture records not found in MEDLINE. Same MeSH, keywords, limits, and study types used as per MEDLINE search, with appropriate syntax used.
CINAHL	Same MeSH, keywords, and limits used as per MEDLINE search, excluding study types and human restrictions. Syntax adjusted for EBSCO platform, including the addition of CINAHL headings.

Grey Literature

Search dates:	Autumn 2020
Keywords:	[(remote monitoring OR remote consultation OR remote check-in) AND (heart failure OR atrial fibrillation OR hypertension OR cardiac rehabilitation)]
Limits:	Publication date limit: January 01, 2010 to present
	Language limit: English or French
Updated:	Search will be updated prior to the completion of stakeholder feedback period



Relevant websites from the following sections of the CADTH grey literature checklist *Grey Matters: A Practical Tool For Searching Health-Related Grey Literature* (<u>https://www.cadth.ca/grey-matters</u>) will be searched:

- Health Technology Assessment Agencies
- Health Economics
- Clinical Practice Guidelines
- Clinical Trials Registries
- Databases (free)
- Internet Search
- Open Access Journals.